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No UNDERTAKINGS WERE FILED DURING THIS PROCEEDING.


Thursday, July 9, 2015
--- On commencing at 10:39 a.m.

MS. DUFF:  Please be seated.


Good morning.  Today we are reconvening the oral hearing of EB-2014-0101.  This is Oshawa PUC Network Inc.'s application for a custom IR.  It is their plan to set rates for each year beginning January 1st, 2015 to December 31st, 2019.


After the oral hearing was concluded last week there were a number of transcript undertakings for which answers were outstanding.  Those undertakings have since been filed. The purpose of today is to provide parties with an opportunity to ask questions regarding those transcript undertaking responses.


May I take appearances, please.

Appearances:

MR. MONDROW:  Good morning, Madam Chair, panel members, Ian Mondrow, counsel for OPUCN.


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Good morning, panel, Mark Rubenstein, counsel for the School Energy Coalition.


MS. DUFF:  Thank you, Mr. Rubenstein.


MR. JANIGAN:  Good morning, Madam Chair.  Michael Janigan for the Vulnerable Energy Consumers Coalition.


MS. DUFF:  Thank you, Mr. Janigan.


MR. STOLL:  Scott Stoll, Greater Oshawa Chamber of Commerce.


MS. LEA:  Jennifer Lea for Board Staff, with Mr. Harold Thiessen, and I believe Mr. Aiken is on the phone; is that right?


MR. AIKEN:  Good morning, Randy Aiken for Energy Probe.


MS. DUFF:  Good morning, Mr. Aiken.


Is there anybody else on the phone joining us today?


MR. MALCOLMSON:  Yeah, Bob Malcolmson, CEO of the Greater Oshawa Chamber of Commerce.


MS. DUFF:  Thank you very much.


MS. GREEY:  Ruth Greey for Consumers Council of Canada.


MS. DUFF:  Thank you, Ms. Greey.


Okay.  I just remind all parties that the questions for today should be limited in scope to the transcript undertaking responses.  At the conclusion of today's hearing we will discuss dates for submissions as people have a better understanding regarding the content.


There is no hearing plan for today, but in discussing it with OEB Staff, I understand that Mr. Aiken will be the first to ask questions, and I think the format will be that intervenors will ask questions on their own.  We won't go transcript undertaking by transcript undertaking.


Mr. Mondrow, do you have any introductory remarks?  And I should remind the panel that they are still affirmed.


MR. MONDROW:  I do not.  Thank you, Madam Chair.


MS. DUFF:  Okay.  Mr. Aiken, do you want to proceed?

OSHAWA PUC NETWORKS INC. - PANEL 3, resumed

David Savage, Previously Affirmed


Ivano Labricciosa, Previously Affirmed

Cross-Examination by Mr. Aiken:

MR. AIKEN:  Thank you.  My first question is on response to Undertaking J1.1, and specifically page 2 of that response.  You will have to let me know when it is up on the screen.


MR. MONDROW:  I'm sorry, Mr. Aiken, I will do that.  I should have said, Madam Chair, I am on my own today, so --


MS. DUFF:  How efficient.


MR. MONDROW:  Well, we will see.  If the parties and panel could bear with me, it may take me a few tries just to get moving here.


I thought I had a system, but so far no good.  There we go.  Mr. Aiken, we're on the screen.


MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  And the table provided at the last of the lines deals with the power expense lead from 20.89 to 24.64 days.


Can you provide what the working capital allowance percentage results from that change?  The June 23rd update had updated it, I believe, to 10.91 percent.  And we're wondering what the actual working capital percentage is of those changes now.


[Witness panel confers]


MR. SAVAGE:  Okay.  Following that adjustment, the revised working capital percentage is 10.02.


MR. AIKEN:  Thank you.


The next set of questions I have are Undertaking J2.4. And the first one is on page 3 of 8.


MS. DUFF:  We're still pulling it up on the screen.


MR. MONDROW:  Go ahead, Mr. Aiken.


MR. AIKEN:  Under the heading "capital expenditure variance account", it's the first sentence I want to ask you about.  It says:

"The capital expenditure variance account mechanism added to the Horizon settlement is intended to 'ring fence' Horizon's capital expenditures for its approved system renewal program."

My question is, do you mean there by "system renewal program" the same as, in your evidence, it is one of the four basic categories of your total capital expenditures?


MR. LABRICCIOSA:  That's correct.


MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  My question is, why did you interpret the Horizon agreement for only system renewal programs?


MR. MONDROW:  Madam Chair, if I could interject.  It is my understanding -- and I may have used that phrase in that sentence or suggested that phrase be used in that sentence.


It is my understanding that the Horizon ring fencing applies to their entire capital program, which is primarily a system renewal program.  I'm not sure that that's salient in respect of what OPUCN is proposing, which should be otherwise clear from the response.


MR. AIKEN:  Yes.  I just wanted to clarify that you understood it was for all their capital expenditures.


MR. MONDROW:  That's my understanding, Mr. Aiken.


MR. AIKEN:  Yes, okay, that's fine.


Moving over to page 5 of 8.  This deals with the load forecast without the annual adjustment.  And you've shown here the customer growth forecast for each of the years being 1.5 percent.


My question is, did you change the volume forecast?  Because there's nothing in this response, I don't think, that tells us what the new volume forecast is.


MR. SAVAGE:  Yes.  We would have.  Changing from 3 percent to 1.5 percent impacts the volume and the customer growth numbers.


MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  And then you've done a calculation elsewhere about the change in the revenue requirement, I believe.


MR. SAVAGE:  Yes.


MR. AIKEN:  This scenario.  Did that scenario, for the revenue requirement -- I'm not talking about the deficiency, but for the revenue requirement, did that take into account the forecast volume change through the cost of power into the rate base component?


MR. SAVAGE:  It did, yes.


MR. AIKEN:  Okay.


MS. DUFF:  Just for clarification, please let me interject, Mr. Aiken.  I want it clarified.  Could you point to -- is this on J2.4, page 6?  That revenue-requirement calculation seems to be specific to the reduction in the new connection costs.  I want to be clear what revenue-requirement number we're referring to when it gets to the load forecast, the cost of power, and the connection cost, those three elements.


MR. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So what we were just discussing with Randy, the revenue-requirement calculation we did under this scenario where the forecast growth will be 1.5 percent for each of the years, those numbers -- and I'm not sure of the reference.  Just bear with me, please.


MR. MONDROW:  I can help with the reference, Madam Chair, and I was so excited about working the screens, I should have dealt with this upfront.  I apologize.


With our second of the three filings yesterday -- which came in under a covering letter, both of which obviously yesterday were dated July 8th, but the second of the three filings filed J2.11 corrected -- sorry, J2.11 prior to correction, an updated J1.2, which was the rate impacts, which we took it upon ourselves to file.


And there was a third sheet, which is not labelled, and that is what I should have introduced this morning.  That may be what Mr. Savage is referring to.


So it is a one-page sheet that has two tables on it.  The top table is labelled -- at the top of the sheet it is labelled "rate application updates, revenue-requirement impact", and I'll get it on the screen in a moment.


Then there is a separate table at the bottom.  And I think that is where the revenue-requirement impacts that Mr. Aiken was referring to have been filed.


This was offered by OPUCN to be of assistance, so it is not tied to any undertakings or interrogatory responses, and it should be given an exhibit number.


MS. DUFF:  Thank you.  It is a blue page, for those that are dealing in hard copy.

MS. LEA:  My page is not blue.

MS. DUFF:  Oh, it's not?  Okay, fair enough.  But it is not a response to a transcript undertaking, and it is a new filing by the applicant.

So could it be given an exhibit number?

MS. LEA:  Absolutely.  I just want to make sure; is it on the screen?

MR. MONDROW:  It is now.

MS. LEA:  Can you show me the title, please, on the screen?

MR. MONDROW:  I will.

MS. LEA:  I just want to make sure I am looking at the same thing.  Yes, thank you.

So this sheet entitled “Rate application updates -^ revenue requirement impacts", will be K, and we're in the fourth day in?

Yes, K 4.1, please; Exhibit K 4.1.

EXHIBIT NO. K 4.1:  Document entitled “Rate application updates - revenue requirement impacts"

MS. DUFF:  Mr. Mondrow, could you just take us through a little bit about the assumptions regarding this exhibit, and why you filed it again, please?

MR. MONDROW:  Yes, I can, although I will defer most of that to Mr. Savage, if I could.

But the reason that this was filed is it traced the revenue requirement impacts -- if you look at the top of the table -- from the initial as-filed position for the application materials as-filed on January 29th in the first row of the table.

And then through the May update, the second row of the table, and this is the revenue requirements for each of the years of the proposed rate plan.

Then through the third update as filed June 23rd; this is the third row of the table.

And at the bottom of the table, I believe we have what's been labelled the alternate scenario, which is 1.5 percent annual customer growth with no annual adjustments, the revenue requirement impact of that.

And I think for the rows in between, I will let Mr. Savage speak to, if I could.

MR. SAVAGE:  Okay.  So going back to the third row, it’s the revenue requirement prior to the oral hearing.  The next three rows represent the impacts from changes we've made, based on various undertakings at the oral hearing, which brings us down to the revenue requirement July 9th, which is the state of our current application.

And you can see their revenue requirement for 2019 is $26,814.

The table just below that is the one we were just talking about, where we're taking the application as it stands and then running the alternate scenario of 1.5 percent annual growth and showing the impact of that.

And I think getting back to Randy's question, what's included there, we have run this through the models, so obviously there is the impact of the 1.5 percent growth in the load forecast, and there's the impact from reducing new connection costs.

There are other flow-through effects, such as revenue offsets change, because they decrease because we have fewer customers under this scenario than in the application scenario.

And we've also input a cost of power increase for each year, and we've based that on both trend analysis and looking at the Ministry of Energy's latest forecasts for the next five years.  Both numbers turned out to be the same, and that's 1.05 percent.

Does that answer your question, Randy?

MR. AIKEN:  It does, and a few others I was going to ask.  Thanks.

MR. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MR. AIKEN:  Back on J2.4, on page 6, we have a table that shows the reduction in new connection costs, and I was a little confused by the title and then the numbers.

The title says revenue requirement impact of reducing new connection costs by 0.6 million per year.

So am I correct that the reduction of 600,000 a year is the growth reduction, and the numbers you're showing as reduction in new connection costs is the net reduction in your capital expenditures?

MR. SAVAGE:  I believe the 0.6 is a typo.  The numbers in the table represent the actual reductions, and that is a net number.

So I can't say for sure that the 0.6 is a gross number.  I think it is a typo.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  And then -- but the question I really had on this table was: this reduction of $380,000, you know, in that area every year, what line item does that come out of in appendix 2-AA^?  And this you can -- appendix 2-AA you can see in Exhibit 1 ^K 1.4, page 22.

I know you don't have it in front of you, but does it include subdivision expansions, service connections and requests, net of contributions, and metering service connections?

MR. LABRICCIOSA:  Yes, you're correct, Randy.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay, thank you.  Then moving on to the part labelled alternative OPUCN rate plan approach, merits of the mid-term review; did you do the rate impact of this someplace?

MR. SAVAGE:  No.

MR. AIKEN:  No, okay.  I just wasn't sure whether you did, that's fine.

Then on page 7 of 8 in the table, a couple of clarification questions.  On the net new connection costs –

MR. MONDROW:  Sorry, Mr. Aiken, if you could just wait one minute?

MS. SPOEL:  Mr. Mondrow, it is 2.4, not 1.4.

MR. MONDROW:  Thank you.  Mr. Aiken, you are on page 7?

MR. AIKEN:  Yes.  In the net new connection costs, under the heading 2015, 2016, 2017, it says “adjusted as indicated above”.

So pausing there, does that refer back to the adjustments on the previous page that we just talked about?

MR. SAVAGE:  Yes, it does.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  And then for 2018 and 2019, it would maintain the forecast, so it would not include the adjustments for 2018 and 2019 shown on the previous page?

MR. SAVAGE:  That's correct.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  Then in the cost of power for the purposes of working capital, the adjust based on trend analysis -- sorry, trend analysis.  I'm just looking at 2015 through 2017, and I take it this is your response to not having the annual review to update the cost of power?

MR. SAVAGE:  That's --


MR. AIKEN:  You would be using the trend analysis?

MR. SAVAGE:  That's right.

MR. AIKEN:  Now, given in the previous line item, the cost of capital, you're going to have to come in for the annual update for the cost of capital parameters, couldn't you do the cost of power update at the same time, because you would have the new cost of power information when you had the new cost of capital information?

MR. SAVAGE:  We could, yes.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  And then my final question is on undertaking J2.11, corrected.

MR. MONDROW:  Just give me one moment, please, Mr. Aiken.  Page number?

MR. AIKEN:  The second page.

MR. MONDROW:  Go ahead.

MR. AIKEN:  And what I am really doing is comparing the table at the top, the distribution rate and bill impact inclusive of rate smoothing, and I'll take the residential as the example.  It shows increases of about eight and a half percent per year.

Does this take into account the reduction in the volume forecasts as well?

MR. SAVAGE:  Yes, it does.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  And that comparison, if I compare that to J 1.2 updated to see the impact of the removal of the annual adjustment, I take it I should be looking at J1.2 updated, page 4 of 4, the last table, table 21, where the average increases are around 7.3, 7.4 percent per year for a residential customer.  Is that correct?

MR. SAVAGE:  There is one omission from the table in 1.2, in that it doesn't have -- it doesn't include the rate rider to collect the estimated January to August revenue foregone by the delay in getting rates approved.  So --


MR. AIKEN:  And the table in J2.11 --


MR. SAVAGE:  That includes that.

MR. AIKEN:  Would you happen to know -- I mean, the increase is about 1.2 percent per year.  How much of that would be due to the rate rider that you have included?  Just a rough estimate, if it is 50 percent or 10 percent?

MR. SAVAGE:  Of the difference -- I would guess 50 percent.

MS. DUFF:  Excuse me for a second, Mr. Aiken.  In J1.2 updated, page 4, the bottom part of that chart, isn't that the smoothed rate impacts, the smoothing of the amount from January 1st to August 31st?

MR. SAVAGE:  No.  It's the smoothed rates, but it doesn't include that recovery rider for the January to August.

MS. DUFF:  Thank you.

MR. AIKEN:  And just to complete that, in J2.11, the recovery of the January 2015 to August 2015 is over the entire four periods, not over a 12-month period.  I think that was the subject of another undertaking.

MR. SAVAGE:  That's correct.

MR. AIKEN:  Okay.  Thank you.  Those are my questions.

MS. DUFF:  Sorry, I'm just stopping here at this point.
Okay, thank you very much, Mr. Aiken.

Mr. Rubenstein?  Are you prepared to go next?
Cross-Examination by Mr. Rubenstein:


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  I just have one question, and it was just a follow-up to a question -- a response that you gave to Mr. Aiken.  This is with respect to, I think it is Exhibit 4.1.  This is the updated revenue-requirement impacts.  And in response to a question by Mr. Aiken or by the Chair about the assumptions you made for the alternate scenario, you said that you updated other revenues.

I just want to understand what exactly you did to update.  Is that simply to essentially revert back to the other revenue table before it was corrected for J3.2?

MR. SAVAGE:  Effectively, yes.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Was there any other changes?

MR. SAVAGE:  No.  Those particular calculations are driven by the 1.5 percent or the 3 percent, or at least partly by that number.  So it is purely mechanical.  So the effect was to reverse the adjustment we made in J3.2.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Thank you very much.  Those are my questions.

MS. DUFF:  Thank you.

Mr. Janigan, did you have any questions?
Cross-Examination by Mr. Janigan:

MR. JANIGAN:  I just have one question on Undertaking J2.6.  And I wonder, with respect to this, what was your understanding of what Board Staff's proposal was in relation to this answer?

MR. MONDROW:  Sorry, Madam Chair.  If Mr. Janigan could give me a moment.

MR. SAVAGE:  Our understanding -- and notwithstanding the fact that Mr. Martin is the expert on this piece, but essentially Board Staff was suggesting that, instead of using the standard ROE comparisons to do the efficiency calculation, we would take the productivity gains per the PEG forecast at the beginning of the forecast and then, at the end of the forecast, recalculate the actual productivity gains -- presumably PEG would do that -- and then that difference would be used to calculate the efficiency.

MR. JANIGAN:  Thank you.  Those are all of my questions.

MS. DUFF:  Thank you, Mr. Janigan.

Mr. Stoll?

MR. STOLL:  I have no questions.

MS. DUFF:  Ms. Greey?

MS. GREEY:  No questions, thanks.

MS. DUFF:  Ms. Lea?
Cross-Examination by Ms. Lea:


MS. LEA:  Thank you.  I do have a few questions, and they're just to follow up on a couple of things for clarification.

In Exhibit K4.1, the last chart that you were talking about -- and this is -- I don't mean to be pedantic, and I hope I'm not too much, but in the second line of the title on the left-hand column it says 1.5 percent annual customer growth.

You're not just referring to customer numbers there, you're including load growth; right?

MR. SAVAGE:  Correct.

MS. LEA:  Okay, that's fine.  Thank you, I just wanted to make sure that I wasn't misapprehending that.

In Undertaking J2.4, I wonder if you could expand on or elucidate your reasons for proposing that several mechanisms continue at once.  So why you believe it is still necessary to have -- or that you are accepting an ESM, an earnings sharing mechanism, a capital expenditure variance account, and the capital expenditure incentive, the CCIEIM.  And how would they interact?

MR. LABRICCIOSA:  The response we've tabled was really to comment on the Horizon case, and there was an understanding that, from what we understand in the Horizon settlement, would we be open to some of these parameters?  And I think our response is yes to an earnings sharing mechanism, no to the variance account, and no to the efficiency adjustment mechanisms with the arguments you proposed.

The CCIEIM, from our perspective, we believe fundamentally, again, it is an innovative way to incent both -- well, to incent the utility to save money with a mechanism to share that with the ratepayers, as well as the utility.

So it is a unique way of creating an incentive for the utility to search for new approaches to save money.  And given the fact that we have some robust benchmarking and some transparency, independent estimating around our cost estimates, we know that essentially it will be a challenge, but we're up for that with a reward at the end of that.

MS. LEA:  I just want to make sure I understood the first part of your answer, and perhaps I misheard.  It's a lot to take in. I appreciate all of the work you've done on these undertakings, but trying to understand them fully.

I'm looking at page 7 of J2.4, and I am looking at the first paragraph under the chart which appears on that page.  And I thought I heard you say that you were rejecting the idea of an asymmetric capital expenditure variance account, or perhaps I misheard you.

MR. LABRICCIOSA:  No.  Inasmuch that the variance accounts we proposed -- which were the uncontrollables -- would be included.  But the controllables, from our perspective, are not included.

MS. LEA:  Thank you for that clarification.

MR. MONDROW:  Sorry, Madam Chair.  Can we pause for a moment, please?  The struggle I'm having, Madam Chair, is we tried to develop this quickly, and there different discussions with different people, and there is a discrepancy between what is written in the response, which is part of our evidence and what Mr. Labricciosa has just said which is another part of our evidence, and I am try he can to figure out how to deal with that appropriately. 

MS. DUFF:  I had the same question, actually, regarding this paragraph.

MR. MONDROW:  I appreciate that.  I think it would be unfortunate, because this isn't an issue of credibility or veracity, to leave that contradiction on the record.  On the other hand, I am conscious that I shouldn't be giving and can't be giving evidence.

But I wonder if -- I am frankly not sure how to deal with that. 

MS. LEA:  Well, shall I proceed with another question while you have a moment, Mr. Mondrow? 

One option is to acknowledge this apparent contradiction in your argument in-chief, and put forward the company's final position in that argument. 

MR. MONDROW:  Why don't we proceed that way?

MS. LEA:  But you know -- I guess what I'm saying is I appreciate all of the work that you've done and the rapidity with which you've had to do it.

MS. DUFF:  May I just offer as a suggestion?  After all of the questions, why don't we take a break, and if there is any clarification in terms of answers from the witnesses, perhaps you could do it then.

MR. MONDROW:  That's fine.  I'm happy to do that, so I don't interrupt the flow. 

The only other thing I would venture, Madam Chair -- and I realize parties only got this part-way through yesterday.

But there is intended, at least, to be -- and I think there is, for the most part -- a description of the interaction of these components, and why certain components were chosen under the alternative scenario. And that is embedded in the response.

Having said that, I appreciate people need clarification and I will try not to interrupt.  Thank you very much. 

MR. LABRICCIOSA:  If I can help with it somewhat, I think I have just caught my error.

While we were speaking about J2.4, page 7 of 8 paragraph 1, under the table “Proposed asymmetrical capital expenditure variance account”, I was recalling that we responded to J2.1, page 1 of 2, where we listed what does not -- what we I tend not to include in a variance account and renewal.

And I was relying on that evidence in my mind, which I shouldn't have.  So hopefully, that clears it up. 

MS. LEA:  Thank you.  I understood your evidence to be that nowhere on the record is there a rate impact implication of this mid-term proposal. And this is not a criticism.

Is there a way for us to gain an understanding of what effect the proposal that you begin to outline at page 6 would have on rates? 

MR. SAVAGE:  There is no easy way, certainly in this room, other than to say obviously 2015, 2016 and 2017 would be similar to the rates we presented under the 1.5 percent growth scenario for all years.

MS. LEA:  Yes, thank you, that is very helpful.

MR. SAVAGE:  2018 and 2019 would increase somewhat.  Now, I would guesstimate it would be less than half of a percent or thereabouts, around half a percent. 

MS. LEA:  Thank you.  If I could just have a moment? 

Thank you very much.  Those are our questions. 

MS. DUFF:  The panel has a few questions, namely me. 
Questions by the Board:


MS. DUFF:  My questions will all be on J2.4. 

MR. MONDROW:  Thank you for that. 

[Laughter]

MS. DUFF:  I'm trying to help you out here, Mr. Mondrow. 

Regarding your consideration of the account that Horizon has -- and I'm on page 3 -- and your characterization of Horizon, although it applied to all capital expenditures, you were making the clarification that primarily, that was your testimony today, it had to do with system renewal program.

So I'm just trying to understand this concept where these two accounts could work in tandem.  The CCIEIM originally in your application was to apply to the controllable capital expenditures, is that correct? 

MR. SAVAGE:  Correct.

MS. DUFF:  And that, in terms of categories of capital Expenditures, was the MS9 project? 

MR. SAVAGE:  Yes.

MS. DUFF:  As well as system renewal? 

MR. SAVAGE:  Yes.

MS. DUFF:  So can I read –- and I'm reading now reading your response here -- if there is a new variance account to deal with system renewal, would that then mean that the CCIEIM account is applicable only to the MS9? 

MR. SAVAGE:  No. 

MS. DUFF:  So it's the in tandem part then that I need some help with understanding. 

MR. SAVAGE:  Yes.  The idea with the variance account would be to capture those projects -- because we have them detailed by projects, those projects that just don't happen at all within the rate period.  They would be captured within the capital variance account during the term.

And similarly, they would be excluded from the CCIEIM, because they didn't happen.  So that would be how it works. 

MS. DUFF:  So in tandem, I guess Oshawa's undertaking to make sure that it is exclusive and it is clear which capital projects go into which variance account, and with that clarification. 

So with system renewal projects, is it your evidence that they will no longer be in the CCIEIM? 

MR. SAVAGE:  No.  System renewal projects that do happen within the plan term will still be part of the CCIEIM.

MS. DUFF:  I understand. 

MR. SAVAGE:  Yes. 

MS. DUFF:  Thank you.  Just to have a better understanding of how all of these parts fit together, if we could turn to page 2?

It's the layering-on of the earnings sharing mechanism and the fact that it is triggered by, and calculated according to the return on equity above the Board-approved rate.  Is that correct? 

MR. SAVAGE:  That's correct.

MS. DUFF:  So let's just leave that for a moment, and we will get to it last.

So in 2015 and 2016, the year unfolds, and if I understand it, to the extent that your non-controllable capital expenditures either take place -- are accelerated or do not happen as planned, you have a symmetrical variance account that you are asking to capture for the uncontrollable, or those that were at third party influences for the timing of those expenditures.  Do you have a deferral account for that? 

MR. SAVAGE:  Yes.

MS. DUFF:  So in that case, let's just assume for a moment that the 407 is years behind schedule. 

MR. SAVAGE:  Hmm-hmm.

MS. DUFF:  Now, let's go to another capital project, your MS9 project, and for that we have the CCIEIM.  It happens, but it is very late.  Unforeseen circumstances arise, and the capital expenditures are delayed. 

So those -- the capturing of that difference from -- I think it is a revenue requirement perspective – it goes into that variance account that you have asked for, correct? 

MR. SAVAGE:  That would go into the capital variance account. 

MS. DUFF:  It's okay to take your time.  I want to make sure I've got the right labels.

MR. SAVAGE:  So in that case, yes.  It's controllable, but if it was delayed and didn't happen at all --


MS. DUFF:  Yes.

MR. SAVAGE:  -- it would fall into the capital variance account.

MS. DUFF:  If it did not happen at all.

MR. SAVAGE:  If it did not happen – sorry, if it was significantly delayed --


MR. LABRICCIOSA:  Does it fall outside the period, I guess is one of the concerns? 

MS. DUFF:  Yes.

MR. LABRICCIOSA:  So instead of 2018, it’s 2019, but delayed in that year? 

MS. DUFF:  That's the scenario I am thinking of.

[Witness panel confers]

MR. SAVAGE:  I think the answer is that it would not be captured in the capital variance account.  That would be the answer, or --


MS. DUFF:  Right, and instead -- as you proposed.  And instead, because of its delay, but within the five-year period, it goes into the CCIEIM account.

MR. LABRICCIOSA:  It's not completed, so I would suggest it is not captured there.

MS. DUFF:  Oh, okay.

MR. LABRICCIOSA:  So that's where I guess -- essentially when it hits the completion, that's when the true-ups of all of the accounts happen.  It is one of those unfortunate projects that may go cross-years and would not be reported as completed and therefore wouldn't be cleared out of any of the accounts.

MS. DUFF:  But the CCIEIM account, it is asymmetrical.  That account is designed.  So to the extent you have a controllable capital expenditure, which happens, but just is somehow delayed, it is an asymmetrical account that picks that up?

MR. LABRICCIOSA:  That's correct.

MR. MONDROW:  Sorry, Madam Chair.  Was your question whether the CCIEIM variance account is -- your question assumed it was asymmetrical?

MS. DUFF:  Yes.  I think that is what I asked.

MR. LABRICCIOSA:  Inasmuch that the symmetry applies to the savings that we would share with the customer?

MS. DUFF:  Hmm-hmm.

[Witness panel confers]

MS. DUFF:  Just to go through...

[Witness panel confers]

MR. SAVAGE:  Sorry, Madam Chair.  We're ready.

MS. DUFF:  If I remember your testimony, you said with respect to the MS9 you were relying on your expertise in project management and things to be more efficient in establishing that project.

But -- that was your testimony.  But perhaps if that controllable capital expenditure is overspent relative to the budget, that's where I thought it was asymmetrical, but please correct me if I am incorrect.

MR. MONDROW:  Maybe there is a terminology problem, if I could suggest.  When I hear "asymmetrical" I assume it works only one way in favour of ratepayers, as opposed to symmetrical, which works for or against either side.  And so I guess my question, Madame Chair, is if your intention is the same when you use asymmetrical; that is, only underspend is captured and not overspend.

MS. DUFF:  And is that the case or not?  The witnesses should answer that question.

[Witness panel confers]

MR. LABRICCIOSA:  No, we were having a discussion about the approach on overspend for MS9, and in that case the assumption would be it would be a prudent spend.  So inasmuch that we could explain, we would be looking for relief for that.

MS. DUFF:  Okay, thank you.  And the third variance account, as I understand the revised proposal, is with respect to this Horizon capital variance account.  And these are, again, with this -- this variance account would capture, to the extent that the projects that are renewable on the renewal-type capital projects, there's potential that dollar amounts would be captured in that variance account as well?

MR. SAVAGE:  Yes.

MS. DUFF:  And is that symmetrical or asymmetrical?

[Witness panel confers]

MR. SAVAGE:  I'm --


MS. DUFF:  I'm looking at page 4 of J2.4.  I think it is asymmetric.

MR. SAVAGE:  That's right.

MS. DUFF:  So just this discussion that we've been having, capital expenditures will unfold different from forecast.  I mean, it is a forecast.

But then the point that I am getting to is at the end of this I've got this earnings sharing mechanism which is calculated an ROE.  So in order to do that calculation I already have dollar amounts put aside in each one of these variance and deferral accounts.  So when I'm calculating the ROE, if we're in a scenario that many capital projects are delayed, I would expect your ROE to be higher than what you forecast.

But I'm concerned about the -- just, have you turned your mind to, when you do that ROE calculation for the earnings sharing mechanism, given that you have projects in a scenario where that have been delayed, how will these variance accounts and dispositions of those work with this earnings sharing mechanism which is picking up the excess over Board-approved ROE?

MR. SAVAGE:  Right.  Well, although we haven't gone into detail on it, obviously, we haven't fleshed it out, it would -- they would work in the same way as in the previous evidence, where we talked about overlap between the two efficiency mechanisms that we have proposed.

We would adjust ROE to reflect any efficiency gained, you know, from -- if there were two mechanisms, we would take the efficiency gained from mechanism 1, for example, and adjust the ROE for that, and then calculate the second efficiency mechanism based on an adjusted ROE.

Although we haven't gone into that detail here, we would take the same stance and work out what the appropriate adjustments would need to be, to have a pure calculation for the ESM.

MS. DUFF:  That is very helpful, thank you very much.  Now, I appreciate the amount of work that was involved with putting this -- the undertakings together in a short period of time, but that answer is helpful, to help me understand how these would work together.

MR. SAVAGE:  Okay.

MS. DUFF:  On page 8 of J2.4 -- and this is my last question -- you're characterizing -- you use the word "blunt".  In point 2, about halfway down the paragraph, Oshawa notes that "adoption of the earnings sharing mechanism blunts this natural incentive", the incentive that you have proposed in your original application.

I want to be sure I understand what you mean by the "blunt".  Can you provide an example?

MR. SAVAGE:  I think another word would probably be "reduces", in the sense that you might earn an incentive under the TCECM^ option.  Then introducing...

MS. DUFF:  Is it the fact that you have had to share 50-50 with the excess ROE in the years that they actually occur, that sharing, where in your previous application there was no sharing?  That is the blunting or reduction of the incentive?

MR. SAVAGE:  I would say, yes, yes.

MS. DUFF:  Did I characterize that correctly?

MR. SAVAGE:  Yes.

MS. DUFF:  Thank you, I understand.  Those are all of my questions.

Mr. Mondrow, did you want to take a break, or are you -- want to proceed with your --


MR. MONDROW:  No, I think --


MS. DUFF:  -- redirect.

MR. MONDROW:  -- on reflection, Madam Chair, I am fine to proceed.  I just have one question in re-examination.  To the extent the transcript suggests it is appropriate we will, if we think it would be helpful, clarify any other matters in our argument.

MS. DUFF:  Okay, please proceed.
Re-Examination by Mr. Mondrow:

MR. MONDROW:  My one question, Mr. Savage, is for you. The question -- I think it was from Board Staff, whether -- perhaps it was Mr. Aiken, but someone asked you whether there was any analysis of the impact on rates of the one mid-term adjustment scenario.

And as my notes reflect your evidence, you suggested that for the years 2015 through 2017 the rate impact would be -- I think you said it would be the same as no adjustment -- as the no-adjustment scenario, which you have provided in the exhibit that was introduced today.

Then you said that in 2018 and 2019, the impact would increase somewhat. 

And my question is: somewhat, relative to what?  What were you using as your base line when you said it would increase somewhat? 

MR. SAVAGE:  The increase in growth assumptions to 3 percent from 1.5 percent impacts the new connection costs.  It would likely impact the cost of power, and there would be an impact on revenue offsets.

So they would be the differences or -- the combination of those would account for a relatively minor increase, I think, in the rate impacts. 

MR. MONDROW:  Relative to what set of impacts that have been presented? 

MR. SAVAGE:  To the scenario we presented rates for, which was the 1.5 percent growth with no adjustments.

MR. MONDROW:  Thank you.  I think I will leave it at that, Madam Chair.  Thank you. 

MS. DUFF:  Okay, thank you. 

The last item for today was to talk about some procedural matters. 
Procedural Matters:


Mr. Mondrow, I understand there was some discussion regarding submissions and filing of your argument in-chief. 

MR. MONDROW:  Yes, there was.  So as matters stand now, pursuant to the directions I think that were provided on the transcript last week, the due date and time for our argument in-chief is this coming Tuesday, which is July 14th.  And as no filing time was suggested, I am assuming it is the end of the Board's day, which is the normal course.

Given the amount of time that, as it turns out, was spent by the Oshawa team – and, to some extent, me -- on these undertaking responses, which I believe was time well spent -- I hope they are helpful. I know a lot of work went into them, as has been recognized and which we appreciate.

I approached Board Staff counsel to ask if we could have an extra half-day, and file our argument in-chief on Wednesday at noon, mindful of the fact that Board Staff has to file its argument, I think, at the end of day on Friday.

As I understand it, that does not overly concern Board Staff, in light of the undertaking responses which we have now provided.  I don't think that change impacts any of the other parties, and it wouldn't impact any other dates.

So I will stop there for a moment.  I would like to deal with our date for reply in a minute.  But that is my request of the Panel for our argument in-chief, that we file on Wednesday the 15th at noon, instead of the end of day on Tuesday the 14th.

MS. DUFF:  Ms. Lea? 

MS. LEA:  We can accommodate that, thank you.

MS. DUFF:  And the dates for the other intervenors to file their submissions was subsequent to Board Staff, correct? 

MS. LEA:  That is correct. 

MR. MONDROW:  And I would suggest, Madam Chair, that as Board Staff's date is not changing and it is only a half day, there shouldn't be an impact on my friends.  But of course, they can address that, if they're concerned.

The second request I was going to make is while we didn't completely -- I don't think the Panel completely specified this, there was some discussion last week about the date for our reply argument.

And as I recall, I was discussing Monday, August the 10th to file that reply.  That's one working day beyond two weeks from the date that the intervenors have to file their arguments.  Their filing date right now is on a Friday, and the Monday, August 10th, is the Monday following the Friday that falls two weeks after that filing date.

So I don't think, in fairness, that the Panel actually confirmed that date.  And before it does, I wanted to make a request this that respect.

And that is because Mr. Savage is scheduled to be on vacation the week ending August 7th, rather than filing on the Monday, I would request the ability to file on the Wednesday, August 12th.  That is the last filing in the process and, of course, it may impact the Board's review by two days.

But it would assist Oshawa, in the sense that if there is any further clarification that involves any of the rate modelling -- I appreciate we're not to introduce any fresh evidence, which we wouldn't. 

But depending on the content of the intervenor arguments and our need to respond to some analysis, having Mr. Savage's help and being able to make sure, given it is the final exchange in this process, that we are correct and knitted together would of assistance to us, and hopefully would be of assistance to the Board.

So the request then is rather than setting, Monday August 10th, as the day for our reply argument, to set that date as Wednesday, August 12th. 

MS. DUFF:  I just casually conferred with my Panel members and, with that explanation, I think that is a reasonable request.

So to correct the record from last week, argument in-chief will now be due on Wednesday, July 15th.  All other dates will remain the same, and reply --


MS. LEA:  I wonder if we could clarify that it is Wednesday at noon.  Board Staff needs that half day. 

MR. MONDROW:  Absolutely.

MS. LEA:  Otherwise, we would only have a day.  We have to have the half day, if that’s all right. Thank you.

MS. DUFF:  Thank you for clarifying that, and reminding me.  And then reply argument will be on Wednesday, August 12th, at the end of day.

MR. MONDROW:  Thank you very much, Madam Chair.

MS. DUFF:  Any concluding comments, Ms. Lea? 

MS. LEA:  Thank you very much, no. 

MS. DUFF:  I think that now ends the evidentiary portion of this hearing.  Thank you very much to the witnesses for accommodating the schedule and regrouping today, as well as all of the participants.

And this hearing is now concluded.
--- Whereupon hearing concluded at 11:35 a.m.
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